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We have audited the Standalone financial statements of LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Financial Statements, including a summary 
of Material Accounting Policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 

("The Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the l'i1dian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting 

.standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our aud it of 

the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis our opinion . 

Information Other than the Standa.lone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of other 

information. The other information comprises the information included in the report of Board of 

Directors and its committees, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and auditor's 

report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated . 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of the Management and those charged with the Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the presentation of these Standalone financial statements that gives a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in 

equity, and cash flows of the company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are also responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion . Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. ~'i>- ~ALo0 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fo rgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

(d) Conclude the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the standalone financial statements may be influenced . We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in: 

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Branch : 711, Addor Aspire, 7th Floor, Nr. Jahanvi Restaurant, University Road, 
Ahemdabad-38001 5. Ph.: 079-48983241 



SURANA MALOO & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Web : www.suranamaloo.com 

2nd Floor, Aakashganga Complex, 
Parimal Under Bridge, 

Near Suvidha Shopping Centre, 
Paldi, Ahmedabad - 380007 

E-mail : vidhansurana@suranamaloo.com 

Ph.: 079-26651777, 26651778 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that : 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of accou!1t. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 

2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting . 

g) As being Private Limited Company, the requirement of the other matters to be included in the 

Independent Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the 

Act, as amended is not applicable. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material impact 
its financial position. 
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(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) 
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding 
Parties'.'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

(v) The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, hence compliance with 
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

(vi) Proviso Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used 

accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the 

same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 

software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of 

the audit trail feature being tampered with . 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in 
"Annexure - B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

Date: 07-09-2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

For, Surana Maloo & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112171W 

~0'\~ 
Per /sh: shikant D Patel 
Partner 
Membership No: 037671 
UDIN: 24037671BKXAHR7757 
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial 

Statements of LCC Minechem Private Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financ ial repo rting of LCC Minechem Private 
Limited ("the Company" ) (CIN - U14290GJ2022PTC129808) as of March 31st, 2024 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Management of company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) . These responsibil ities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its a·ssets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note" ) issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effect ively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thei r operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial contro ls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizat ions of management and directors 

of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 

effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st, 
2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date:07-09-2024 

For, Surana Maloo & Co. 
Ch a rte red Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112171W 

\~~~ 
Pe¢ Shashikant D Patel 
Partner 
Membership No: 037671 
UDIN: 24037671BKXAHR7757 
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Financial Statements of "LCC 

Minehcem Private Limited" 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Lega l and Regulatory Requirements' sect ion of our 

report to the Members of Dom's Delicious Private Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and accord ing to the exp lanations provided to us by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of aud it, we state that: -

(i) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equ ipment and Intangible Assets: 
(a) 

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant 
details of Right-of-use asset. 

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified during the year by 
the Management in accordance with program of physical verification, which in our 
opinion, provides for physical verification of all Property, Plant and Equipment at 
reaso·nable intervals having regard to size of the Company and nature of fixed 
assets. Based on our audit and according to the information and explanat ions given 
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verificat ion . 

(c) Based upon the aud it procedure performed and according to the records of the 
company, we report that, the title in respect of se lf-constructed buildings and title 
deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the company 
is lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee), 
disclosed in the financial statements included under property, plant and eq uipment 
are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the 
Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting 
under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicab le to the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no proceeding has been initiated on or 
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of 
Benarni Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and rules made 
thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order are 
not app licable to the Company. 
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(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventory of Raw 
Material and Fini shed Goods have bee n physically verified by the management. In 
our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verifica tion by the management is 
appropriat e. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
cla ss of inventory were noti ced when compared with the books of account. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 

crores, in aggregate, at any points of t ime during the yea r, from banks or fin ancial 

institutions on the basis of security of current asset s, accordingly reporting under 

clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applica ble. 

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or 
st ood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the yea r, 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Ord er is not appli ca bl e. 

(b) The Company has not made any investments, accordingly reporting under 
clause 3(iii)(b) of the Orde r is not appli ca bl e. 

(c) The Company has not granted any loans, acco rdingly reporting under clause 
~(i ii)(c) of the Order is not applica ble. 

(d) The Company has not granted any loans, accordingly reporting under cl ause 
3(i ii)(d) of the Order is not appli ca bl e. 

(e) The Company ha s not granted any loans, accordingly reporting under cl ause 
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not appli cabl e. 

(f) The Compa ny has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 
either repayable on demand or without specifying any term s or period of 
re payment during the yea r accordingly, reporti ng under clause 3(i ii)(f) is not 
applica ble. 

The Compa ny has not provided any guara ntee or se curity or granted any advances in the 
nature of loa ns, secured or unsecured, to companies, fi rms, Limited Li ability Partne rs hips 
or any other pa rti es . 

(iv) Th e compa ny has not given loans or made investments or provided guarantees or 

security, attracting the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, accordingly 

reporting requirements of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable 

(v) Acco rding t o t he information and explanati ons given to us the Company has not accepted 
deposits (including dee med deposits) from the public within the mea ning of Sections 73 
to 76 of the Act, and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the reporting requirements 
of paragraph 3(v) of the Order, is not applica ble to the Company. 
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(vi) The company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence 
reporting with the respect to maintenance of cost is not applicable. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records produced before us, 

the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund (PF), Employees' State Insurance (ESIC), Professional Tax, income-tax, duty 

of cu stoms, cess, goods & service tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate 

authorities though there have been few delays in case of goods and service tax and tax 

deducted at source. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 

undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, cess and other 

material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable . 

(b) There are no dues of Central Excise, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Custom 

Duty, Income Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Professional Tax, which 

have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions 
relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 

1961). 

(ix) According to the information and explanation given to us, 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of 

interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful 

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief and as per the information and explanations 

given to us by the management, in our opinion, the Company has applied term loan 

for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 

performed by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial 

statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have 

been used for long term purposes by the Company. 
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(x) 

(xi) 

Ph.: 079-26651777, 26651778 

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company 

has not taken any funds from an any entity or person on account of or to meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled operations. 

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(x) (a) ofthe Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares /fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under 
audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(a) According to the information available with us, no fraud by the Company and no 
material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) According to the information available with us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under 
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and up to the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) (a) to 3 (xii) (c) of the 
Order are not applicable 

(xiii) As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act 2013, wherever applicable, and all the details have 
been disclosed in Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards. 

(xiv) 
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination the Company has an adequate internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit report of internal auditor for the year under 
audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, 
timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) As per information and explanation given to us, during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its, Directors or persons connected with its 
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company. 
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(xvi) 
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(a) According to the information give n to us, the Company is not required to be 
reg istered und er section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 

clause 3 (xv i) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to th e Company. 

(b) The Group does not have any CIC as part of group and accordingly report ing under 
clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvii) As per information available with us, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediate ly preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attent ion, which causes us to believe that any material unce rtainty ex ists as on the 

date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capab le of meeting its li abi lities 
exist ing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fa ll due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabiliti es falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, wi ll 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) 
(a) Provision of section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company, Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

(b) Provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company, Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

For, Surana Maloo & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 112171W 

Per, t:: D Patel 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 07-09-2024 

Partner 
Membership No: 037671 
U DIN: 24037671BKXAHR7757 
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LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
Note No. 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

I. ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant an d Equipment 5 499.23 169.31 

(b) Capital Work in progress 29.74 
(c) Other Non-Current Assets 6 11.59 5.05 

Total Non - Current Assets 510.82 204.09 

2 Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 7 76.51 29.69 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 8 116.59 

(ii) Cash and Cash Equiva lents 9 23.41 18.53 

(iii) Other Current Financial Assets 10 0.01 
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net ) 11 1.29 
(c) Other Current Assets 12 92.58 129.61 
Total Current Assets 309.10 179.12 

Total Assets 819.92 383.21 

11 . EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capita l 13 75.00 1.00 

(b) Other Equity 14 43 .43 

Total Equity 118.43 1.00 

2 Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Li abi liti es 

(i) Borrowings 15 220.72 95.74 
(b) Deferred tax liabiliti es (Net) 16 7.74 

Total Non Cu rrent Liabilities 228.46 95.74 

3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 17 295.11 240.30 

(ii) Trade Payables 

(A) 
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small 

en terp rises 18 7.97 

(B) 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 

enterprises and Small enterprises 18 61.53 45.77 

(iii) Other current financial liabi lities 19 79.85 0.32 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 20 24.41 0.08 

(c) Current Tax Liabilties (Net) 11 4.17 

Total Current Liabil ities 473.02 286.47 

Total Liabilities 701.48 382.21 

Total Equity and Liabilities 819.92 383.21 

Material Accounting Policies 1 to 4 

For and on beha lf of Board of Directors of As per our report of even date, 

LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED For Surana Maloo & Co. 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 Cha rtered Accountants 

~ tr 
- Firm Reg. No. - 112171W 

~1>- WiAL o0 

.. J,P. .. ~ '"'' Q;-~ cf C> 
;]; 2nd Floor, o 

Arjanb hai S. Raba ri Laljibhai A. Ahir I * Aa\\ashganga Com. • * I 
Di rector Director ~ Paldi,A'bad· 7. ~ Partner 

DI N: 779458 2 DIN : 7794599 ~ g Membersh ip No : 037671 
01i'i:D ACCr;::,..:S l -

Date : 7th September 2024 Date: 7th September. 2024 

Place . Ahmedabad Place : Ahrnedabad 
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LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Particulars Note No. 

Revenue From Operations 21 

Other Income 22 

Total Income (1+11) 

Expenses: 

Cost of Material Consumed 23 

Purchase of Stock in Trade 24 

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress 

and Stock-in-Trade 25 

Employee Benefits Expenses 26 

Finance costs 27 

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 5 

Other Expenses 28 

Total Expenses (IV) 

Profit Before Tax (Ill-IV) 

Tax expense: 

(1) Current tax 

(2) Deferred tax 

Profit For The Period (V-VI) 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the Year {Vll+VIII) 

Earnings per equity share: 

Basic Earning per Share 

Diluted Earning per Share 

Material Accounting Policies 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

~~ 
Arjanbhai S. Rabari Laljibhai A. Ahir 

Director 

DIN : 7794582 

Date : 7th Septembe r, 2024 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Di rector 

DIN : 7794599 

31 

31 

lto4 

-
~\>-.~ALo0 

Q:-"t' <I Cl 
;;; 2nd Floor. o 

j * Aakashganga Com. • * ) 
1 ~ Paldi ,A'bad· 7. ~ 
~ g 

~..s,~Acco..:S 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
For the period 03-03-

on 31st March, 2024 
2022 to 31st March 

682.54 

0.07 

682.60 

(5 .92) 

20.49 

(39 .99) 

116.01 

41.93 

21.56 

467.66 

621.73 

60.88 

9.70 

7.74 

43.43 

-

43.43 

25.00 

25.00 

As per our report of even date, 

For Surana Maloo & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. - 112171W 

)[)_~vl-1' 
Per, CA Shashikant D Patel 

' Partner 

} Membersh ip No : 037671 

Date : 7th Septembe r, 2024 

Pla ce: Ahmedabad 
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LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U 14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement For the year ended on 31st March 2024 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

For the period 03-03-

on 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before Tax 60.88 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 21.56 

Interest expenses 41.93 

Inte rest income (O.Olj 

Interest on Income Tax Refund (0 .06) 

Provision for Expected credit loss 2.65 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 126.94 

Adjustment For Working Capital Changes: 

Changes in Inventories (46.82) (29.69) 

Changes in Trade Receivables (119.24) 
Changes in Financi al Assets and Other Assets 30.48 (134.66) 

Changes in Financial Liabilities and Other Payables 127.58 46.17 

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 118.95 (118.18) 

Direct Taxes paid (Net) (4.19) (1.29) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 114.76 (119.47) 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (including advances for capital 

expenditure) (351.48) (169.31) 

Changes in Capital WIP 29.74 (29.74) 

Interest income 0.01 

Changes in FORs other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (5 .00) 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (326.73) (199.05) 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from/ (Repayments of) long term borrowings 124.98 95.74 

Proceeds I {Repayments) from short term borrowings 54.80 240.30 

Proceed from issue of Share Capita l 74.00 1.00 

Interest Paid (41.93) 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 211.85 337.04 

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (0 .12) 18.53 

OPENING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 18.53 

CLOSING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 18.41 18.53 

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement 

1. The above Stateme nt of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Ind irect Method" as set out in Accounting Standard · 3 "Cash 
Fl ow Statements". 

2. Cash and cash eq uivalent comprises of: 

For the year For the year 

Particulars ended on ended on 

31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

Balances with banks: 

· Current Accounts 17.98 16.44 

Cash on hand 0.43 2.09 

Cash and cash equivalents in Standalone Statement of cash flow 18.41 18.53 

Material Acco unting Policies 1 to 4 

3. Disclosure under para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flows unders The Companies !Indian Accounting 

Standard) Rules, 2017 (as amended) is given as below. 

Particlulars Borrowinlls in Lakhs 
Balance as on April 01, 2022 

Cash flow changes (336.04) 

Balance as on 31st March, 2023 336.04 

Balance as on Apri l 01, 2023 336.04 

Cash flow changes (179 .78) 

Balance as on 31st March , 2024 515 .83 

For and on behal f of Board of Directors As per our report o f even dat e, 

LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED For Surana Ma loo & Co. -i,. MALO hartered Accou ntants 

~~ 
'<!(--~ 0 If 1 Reg. No . - 112171W 

$ Cl 

~ "'""~· 0 ~ ~ >.J-j * Aakashganga Com. • * Vii i Paldi,A'bad· 7. ~ 

Arjanbhai S. Rabari La lj ibhai A. Ahir ~1-i C Shashil<ant D Patel 

Director Director ~Q) ACCo..:S rtner 

DIN : 7794582 DIN : 7794599 - Mern b rsh ip No : 037671 
.. 

Date: 7t h Sep tem ber , 2024 Date: 7t h Sep t emb er. 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad Pla ce : Ahmedabad 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance as at 
Changes in Equity Share 

April 1, 2023 
Capital due to prior period 

errors 

1.00 

Balance as at 
Changes in Equity Share 

April 1, 2022 
Capital due to prior period 

errors 

-

B. Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance at the beginning of April 1,2022 

Profit attributable to owners of the company 

Balance at the end of March 31, 2023. 

Balance at the beginning of April 1,2023 

Profit attributable to owners of the company 

Balance at the end of March 31, 2024 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Director Director 

DIN: 7794582 DIN: 7794599 

Date: 7th September, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

-

Restated bala nee at the 

beginning of 

April 1,2023 

1.00 

Restated balance at the 

beginning of 

April 1,2022 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Changes in equity share 
Balance as at 

capital during the year 
March 31, 2024 

2023-24 

74.00 75.00 

Changes in equity share 
Balance as at 

capital during the year 
March 31, 2023 

2022-23 

1.00 1.00 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Reserves and Surplus 

Retained 

Earnings 

-

-
-

43.43 

43.43 

As per our report of even date, 
For, Surana Maloo & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. - 112171W 

··Membership No: 037671 

Date: 7th September, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Total 

-
-

43.43 

43.43 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

LCC Minechem Private Limited ('the Company'), incorporated on 3rd March, 2022 under the provisions of 

Companies Act, is a private limited company domiciled in India with its registered office situated at P.7, 

Office Odhavbag 3, Jun, Madhapr, Kachchh, Bhuj, Gujarat, India, 370020. 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of mining of clays (kaolin, ball clay, fire clay, etc.) and 

manufacturing china clay products from such mining of kaolin clays. 

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

a. Basis of Preparation: 

Standalone restated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared as per Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 

amended from time to time, notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other 

relevant provisions of the Act . 

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 
September 07, 2024. 

Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention, except for certain 

financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period in accordance 

with Ind AS. 

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March 2022, The Company prepared its financial 

statements in accordance with accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the 'Act' ) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (referred to as 'Indian 

GAAP'). These financial statements are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements . The Company has 

adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First 

time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. Previous period numbers in the financial statements have 

been restated to Ind AS. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been 

summarized in Note 33 offinancial statements. The details of the first-time adoption exemptions availed 

by the Company is also given therein. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a 

newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revis ion to an existing accounting standard 

requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

b. First time Adoption of Ind AS 

These are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS). For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had prepared the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of 
the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act ('Prev ious GAAP' ). 

The accounting po lic ies set out in Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements have been app lied in preparing 
these standa lone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 including th e comparat ive 
information for the year ended Ma rch 31, 2023 . 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

In presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has adjusted 

amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP. This note 

explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared in 
accordance with Previous GAAP and how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the 
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows and disclosures. 

• Exemptions and Exception availed on first time adoption of Ind AS 

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain optional exemptions and 

mandatory exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 from previous GAAP to Ind AS, as explained below. The 
resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at 
the transition date under Ind AS and previous GAAP have been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings 
or another appropriate category of equity) . This note explains the adjustments made by the Company in 
restating its financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

• Deemed Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant 
and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary 
adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by 
Ind AS 38 'Intangible Assets . Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets and investment properties at their previous GAAP carrying value . 

• Use of Estimates 

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with 
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any 
difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. 

Ind AS estimates are based on conditions/information that existed at the date of transition to Ind AS 
and are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The 
company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were 
not required under previous GAAP: 

Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at FVTPL or FVOCI; 
Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model; 
Discount Rates considered for measurement of financial instruments and provisions 

• Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for 
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS . However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time 
adopter to apply the de-recognition requirem ents provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 
to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the 
t ime of initially accounting for those transactions. Th e Company has elected to apply the de-recognition 
provisions of Ind AS 109 prospective ly from the date of t ra nsition to Ind AS . 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

• Classification and measurement of financial assets 

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (investment in debt 
instruments) on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

Consequently, the Company has applied the above assessment based on facts and circumstances existing on 

the transition date 

• Impairment of financial assets 

The Company has applied impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by 
Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort 
to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare 
it with the credit risk at the transition date. 

c. Functional and Presentation Currency 

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the also the 

functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, except per share data, face 

value of equity shares and expressly stated otherwise. 

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The application of the Company's accounting policies in the preparation of the Standalone financial 

statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and disclosures 

of contingent liabilities. Est imates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any 

revisions thereto are recognized prospect ively. Actual' results may differ from these est imates which could 

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 

affected in future periods. 

a. Current/Non-current Classification: 

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 
i. the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
ii. the asset is intended for sale or consumption; 
iii. the asset/l iability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting 

period; 
iv. the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 

a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting dat~; 
v. In the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement 

of the liability for at least twelve months after the re porting date. 

All other ass ets and liabilities are class ifi ed as non-current. Defe rred t ax assets and liabilities are 
class ifi ed as non-curre nt ass ets and li abiliti es. 

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has 
ascertained its norma l operating cycle as twelve months. Th is is based on the nature of services and the 
time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in cash and 
cash equ iva lents. 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

b. Key Sources of estimation uncertainties 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described in the below mentioned notes 

• Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 

Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, 

they are based on technical estimates and advice, taking into account the nature, estimated usage and 

operating conditions of the asset. Component Accounting is based on the management's best estimate of 

separately identifiable components of the asset. 

• Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

In estimating the fair value offinancial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable 

data to the extent available. Where such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establishes 

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these models are taken from 

observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in 

establishing fair values . Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and 

volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 

instruments. 

• Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial 

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 

developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases 

and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 

benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 

each reporting date. 

• Current I Deferred Tax Expense 

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of current taxes, deferred taxes 

and tax credits that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 

together with future ta x planning strategies. 

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 

• Recognition and Measurement 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

taxes and duties and all other costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for intended 

use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing items and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Financing costs relating to borrowing funds attributable to acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 

are also included, for the period till such asset is put to use. 

Spare parts and servicing equipment are recognized as property, plant and equipment, if they meet the 

definition property, plant and equipment and are expected to be used for more than one year. All other 

items of spares and servicing equipment are classified as item of inventories. 

Subsequent Expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated 

with the expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for its intended use on the reporting date is disclosed as Capital 

Work-in-Progress and carried at cost. 

• Depreciation 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on the Straight-line Method (SLM) over the 

useful life of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of the 

Property, Plant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis from 

the date on which such asset is ready to be put to use. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 

depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any such change 

in the estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The estimated useful lives of items of Property, Plant & Equipment included in financial statements as 

prescribed in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 are as follows: 

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life 
Plant & Machineries · 3 - 15 years 
Office Equipment 5 years 
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years 
Computers & Peripherals 3-6years 
Buildings 60 years 

• Derecognition 

Carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gain or loss arising on the 

disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

b. Intangible Assets 

• Recognition and Measurement 

Intangible assets wit h finite useful lives that are acquired separately are measured on initial recogni tion 

at cost and carried at cos t less accum ulated amortization and accumulated impa irment losses . 
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Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 

the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit and loss statement. 

• Amortization 

Amortizat ion is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values 

over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Amortization method, useful lives and 

residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate . 

• Derecognition 

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 

use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in 

profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 

c. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 

impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order 

to determine the exter:it of the impairment loss (if any) . When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable 

amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 

unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, 

corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to 

the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be 

identified. 

Intangible assets w ith indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 

impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an ind ication that the asset may be impaired. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the est imated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for 

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted . 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is est imated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carryi ng amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

An impai rment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an impairm ent loss subseq uently reverses, t he carrying amount of th e asset (or a cash-generating 

unit) is increased to the revised est imate of it s recoverab le amount, but so that the increased carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that wou ld have been determin ed had no impairment loss 

been recognised for the asset (or cash-generat ing un it) in pr ior years . A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognised immed iately in profit or loss . 
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d. Inventories 

Raw materials are valued at weighted average cost including all charges in bringing the materials to the 

present location. Stock of finished goods is valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower after 

providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion 

and directly attributable overheads incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. 

e. Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company 

at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates 

the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional 

currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 

at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when 

the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical 

cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange 

differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

f. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 

asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All others borrowing cost are recognized in 

the profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

g. Revenue Recognition 

The Company has applied Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The following is the 
significant accounting policy related to revenue recognition under Ind AS 115. 

• Service income 
It requires a contract as well as the various performance obligations contained in the contract to be 
identified. The number of performance obligations depends on the types of contracts and activities . 

The fundamental principle is that the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers must reflect; 

j.,- the rate at which performance obligations are fulfilled, corresponding to the transfer to a 

customer of control of a good or service; 

>- Amount to which the seller expects to be entitled as consideration for its activities . The way in 

which transfer of control of a good or service is analyzed is crucial, since that transfer determines 

the recognition of reven ue . The transfer of control of a good or serv ice may take place 

continuously (revenue recognition on a progress towards completion basis) or on a specific date 

(recognition on complet ion). 

• Sale of Goods 

Revenue from the sa le of goods is recognized as revenue on the basis of customer contracts and the 

performance ob ligations contained there in. Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the contro l of 
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goods is transferred to a customer. Control lies with the customer if the customer can independently 

determine the use of and consume the benefit derived from a product or service. Revenue from product 

deliveries is recognized at a point in time based on an overall assessment of the existence of a right to 

payment, the allocation of ownership rights, the transfer of risks and rewards, and acceptance by the 

customer. 

• Other Income 

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 

the applicable Effective Interest Rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments or receipts through the expected life of financial instruments to: 

:S.,. The gross carrying amount ofthe financial assets, or 

:S.,. The amortized cost of the financial liability 

:S.,. Export benefits/Value added tax benefits are recognized as Income when the right to receive 

credit as per the terms of the scheme is established and there is no significant uncertainty 

regarding the claim. 

:S.,. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. 

h. Employee Benefits 

• Defined benefit plans 

The company's gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan. The company's net obligation in respect 

of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have 

earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine 

its present value. The Company accounts for the liability for the gratuity benefits payable in future based 

on an independent actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering 

discounting rate relevant to Government Securities at the Balance Sheet Date. 

Defined benefit costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income 

are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur. Acturial gains and 

losses arising from defined benefit plans in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and is reflected immediately in retained earnings 

and not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan 

amendment. 

The Company determines the net interest expense/ (income) on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 

for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the 

beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/ (asset), taking into account any 

changes in the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and 

benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are 

recognized in profit or loss . 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 

relates to past se rvice ('past se rvice cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment is 

recognized immediately in profit or loss . The Company recogn izes ga ins and losses on the settlement of a 

defined benefit plan when the sett lement occurs. 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

• Defined Contribution plan 

Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as 

defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of 

contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employee. 

• Compensated Absences 

Employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued leaves and utilize it in future service 
periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Provision for Compensated 

Absences and its classifications between current and non-current liabilities are based on independent 

actuarial valuation . The actuarial valuation is done as per the projected unit credit method as at the 

reporting date. 

• Short Term Employee Benefits 

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 

short-term employee benefits. These are measured on an und iscounted basis and expensed as the related 

service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a 

present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 

employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

i. Income Tax 

Income tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recogn ized in the profit and loss statement, 

except to the extent that it relates to and item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive 

income. 

• Current Tax 

Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 

and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 

tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 

uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 

substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current income tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 

from or paid to the taxation authorities . The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 

that are en acted or subst antially enacted at th e report ing dat e. 

• Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recogn ised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the company's f inancial statements and th e co rresponding ta x ba ses used in computation 

of taxab le profit. Deferred Tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and t ax cred its . 
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Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is 

probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can 

be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been 

enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 

from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the 

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 

liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 

entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis 

or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Any tax credit available is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is created by way 

of credit to the statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax. 

j. Segment Reporting 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of mining and its related activities which is considered 

to be the only reportable business segment. Further, the revenues ofthe Company are derived primarily 

from sale of goods processed from mining activities . Also, the Company operates within India and does 

not have operations in economic environments with different risks and returns. Hence, it is considered 

operating in single geographical segment. Accordingly, there are no other separate reportable segments 

in terms of Ind AS 108 on "Operating Segment. 

k. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 

to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated at the reporting date. 

Provisions are recognized based on the best estimate of the management with respect to the amount 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks 

and uncertainties surrounding the obligation . When a provision is measured using the cash flows 

estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows 

when the effect of th e time value of money is materi al. 

Disc losure fo r a contingent liabil ity is made when th ere is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
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in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no 

provision or disclosure is made. 

A contingent asset is not recognized but is disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 
I 

I. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

• Financial assets 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair 
value on initial recognition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date i.e . the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial assets 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories: 

• Financial assets at amortized cost: 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 

hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on 

the principal amount outstanding. 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial 
assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair 
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any finan cial asset which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI is classified as at FVTPL. 

• Equity Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates 

Investments in equ ity shares of su bs idiaries and associates an d other equ ity investments in subs idiar ies 

and associates are carr ied at cost less impa irment , if any. 
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• Investments in Equity Instruments 

All Equity Investments falling within the scope of Ind AS -109 are measured at Fair Value through Profit 

and Loss (FVTPL) with all fair value changes being recognized in profit and loss statement. 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for 

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI is classified as at FVTPL. 

(iii) De-recognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to 
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
Company could be required to repay. 

(iv) Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 

assets. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at 

lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 

allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an 

impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. 

• Financial Liabilities 

(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities 

Th e Company's financial liabiliti es include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdra ft s and derivative financial inst ruments. 

All financial li ab il ities are recognised initially at fair value . All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in th e case of loan and borrowings and payable, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs. 
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For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 

amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated 
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized 
in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

• Loans and Borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. 

• Compound Financial Instrument 

Compound financial instruments are separated into liabilities and equ ity component based on the 
terms of the contract. At the inception, the fa ir value of liabilities component is determined using the 
market rate. The amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortized cost until it is 
extinguished on redemption . 

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from its balance sheet when, and only 
when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expired. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the origin al liabili ty and the recognit ion of a new li ability. The 
difference in the respective ca rrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profi t or loss . 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financ ial assets and fi nancial liabilit ies are offset and the net amount is repo rted in the balance sheet if 

the Company currently has enforceab le legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 

intention to settle on a net basis , to rea lised the ass ets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 



Notes to Standalone Financial Statements 

m. Lease 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term 

leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments 

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

i. Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use 

assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted 

for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease 

liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 

straight-line basis from the commencement date to the end of lease term . If ownership of the leased 

asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a 

purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of­

use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non­

financial assets. 

ii. Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the 

present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 

payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a 

rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also 

include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and 

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the 

option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised 

as ei:cpenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs . In 

calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at 

the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 

determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the 

accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 

lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 

lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

iii. Short term leases and leases of low value of assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery 

and equipment . It also applies the lease of low-va lue assets recognition exempt ion to leases that are 

considered to be low va lue. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-va lue assets are 

recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term . 
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Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a 

straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 

operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease 

term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 

which they are earned. 

n. Fair Value Measurement 

The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest . 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The company's management determines the po li cies and procedu res for both recurring fair va lue 
measurement, such as derivative instruments 
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At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities 

which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. For this 
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant 
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 

on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy, as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in 
the relevant notes. 
• Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
• Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 
• Financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) 

o. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash on hand, bank balance in current and 

cash credit accounts and short term highly liquid instruments. 

p. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted 

for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards 
applicable to the Company. 
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Note 5 • Property, Plant & Equipment 

Gross Carrying Amount 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 

Additions 

Disoosals 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 

Depreciation I amortisation for the year 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 

Depreciation/ amortisation for the year 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 

Land Buildings 
. 

67.06 

67 .06 

67.06 

36.52 

67.06 36.52 

Land Buildings 

0.23 
. 

0.23 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Plant & Machinery Furniture & Fixtures Office Equipments Computers 

98 .82 1.16 1.16 1.12 

98.82 1.16 1.16 1.12 

98.82 1.16 1.16 1.12 

306.98 7.28 0.31 0.40 

405.79 8.44 1.47 1.52 

Property, Plant & Equipment 

Plant & Machinery Furniture & Fixtures Office Equipments Computers 

20.41 0.19 0.25 0.48 

20.41 0.19 0.25 0.48 

Property, Plant & Equipment 
Net Carrying Amount 

Land I Buildings I Plant & Machinery I Furniture & Fixtures I Office Equipments I Computers I 
As at March 31, 2023 67.06 I · I 98.82 I 
As at March 31, 2024 67.061 36.29 I 385.39 I 

(a) The Company has neither given nor taken any assets on finance lease. 

(b) Individual assets of Property, Plant and Equipment has been reclassified wherever necessary. 

(c) Estimated useful life of the assets is in line with useful life prescribed in schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013. 

(d) Refer Note 15.1 for assets mortgaged/ hypothicated as security. 

1.16 I 
8.24 I 

(e) Date of put to use of the assets is Olst april, 2023, and accordingly depreciation has been considered from the finanical year 2023-24. 

Note 5.1:Capital WIP Ageing Schedule (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Amqunt in CWIP as at 31st March 2024 

CWIP Less than 1 I 2 I 
vear 1· years 2-3 years I More than 3 years I Tqtal 

Project in progress I I I . I 

Amount in CWIP as at 31st March 2023 

CWIP Less than 1 I 2 I 
vear 1· years 2-3 years I More than 3 years I Total 

Project in progress 29 .74 I I I I 

1.161 1.121 

1.22 I 1.04 I 

29.74 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Total 
Capital WIP 

. 
169.31 29.74 

169.31 29.74 

169.31 29.74 

351.48 

(29.74) 

520.79 . 

Total 
Capital WIP 

21.56 

21.56 

Total 
Capital WIP 

169.31 29.74 

499.23 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 8.4 Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 

good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired 

Total 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 

good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 

good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

impaired 

Total 

( Rs. in Lakhs) 
As at 31 st March,2024 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment* 
Less than 6 months 

1-2 Years 2-3 years 
More than 

Total 
6 months -1 year 3 years 

119.24 - - - - 119.24 

. . - . - -

2.65 - . - - 2.65 

. - - . . -

. . - - - -

- - . - . -

116.59 . . - - 116.59 

( Rs. in Lakhs) 
As at 31 st March,2023 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment* 
Less than 6 months 

1-2 Years 2-3 years 
More than 

Total 
6 months -1 year 3 years 

-- - - -

- . - - . -

. - . - - . 

- - - - . . 

. . - - - . 

- - . . - -

. . . . . . 

*If no due date of payment is specified in that case disclosure shall be from the date of the transaction . 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Note 6 : Other Non-Current Assets 

Security Deposits 

Prepaid Expenses 

Note 7 : Inventories 

Raw Material and Components 

Particulars 

Total 

Particulars 

Finished goods (includes good purchased for re-sale, as both are stocked together) 

Total 

Note 7.1: Inventories are valued as per the following methods: 

Items 

Raw Material and Components 

Finished goods 

Note 8 : Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Considered good - Unsecured 

Allowance for expected credit loss 

Total 

As at Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

3.45 3.45 

8.14 1.60 

11.59 5.05 

Asat As at 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

36.52 29.69 

39.99 -

76.51 29.69 

Method of Valuation 

At Cost 

At Cost or NRV whichever is lower 

Asat Asat 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

119.24 -

119.24 -

2.65 -

116.59 -

Note 8.1 Fair value of trade receivables is not materially different from carrying value presented. 

Note 8.2 Expected Credit Loss: Provision for expected delay in realisation of t rade receivables beyond contractual terms is 

determined using a provision matrix whi ch takes into account available external and internal liquidity risk factors including historical 

factors including historical experience and adjusted for forward looking information . The Company uses an estimated economic value 

based on age of receivables to compute the expected credit loss allowance. 

Note 8.3 Change in Allowance for Expected Credit Loss: 

As at Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

At th e beg inni ng of t he yea r - -

Add it ion / (Delet ion) du ring the yea r 2.65 -

Provision at the end of t he yea r 2.65 -

Note 8.4 : Refer note 8.4 fo r agei ng of t rade rece ivabl es 



Note 9 : Cash & Cash Equivalents 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

(A) Cash and Bank Balances 

a) Balances with Banks 17.98 16.44 

b) Cash on Hand 0.43 2.09 
Total (A) 18.41 18.53 

(B) Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 

Fixed Deposits - Maturing within 12 months from reporting date 5.00 -

Total (Bl 5.00 -

Total (A+B) 23.41 18.53 

Note 10 : Other Current Financial Assets 

As at As at 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposits 0.01 -
Total 0.01 -

Note 11 : Current tax assets/(liabilities) (Net) 

As at Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Current tax assets 6.01 1.29 

Current tax liabilities (10.17) -

Current tax assets (Net) (4.17) 1.29 

Note 12 : Other Current Assets 

As at Asat 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Balances with Revenue Authorities 51.74 29 .60 

Advances to supplier 36.44 87.63 

Prepaid Expenses 4.40 1.44 

Pre-Operative Expenses - 10.94 

Total 92.58 129.61 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 13 : Share Capital 

(a) Authorized, Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Equity Share Capital 

Share Capital 

Authorised 

7,50,000 (P.Y. 10,000) Equity Share Capital of Rs. 10 each 

Issued Subscribed & fully Paid up 

7,50,000 (P .Y. 10,000) Equity Share Capital of Rs.10 each fully paid up 

Total 

As at 31st March 

2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

75 .00 

75.00 

75 .00 

(b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period: 

Particulars 
As at 31st March 

2024 

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 

Add : issued during the year 7,40,000 

Equity Shares at the end of the year 7,50,000 

As FY 2022-23 is the first year of incorporation . 

As at 31st March 

2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

As at 31st March 

2023 

-
10,000 

10,000 

FY 2022-23 is the first yea r of incorporation of the Company and it has not allott~d any fully paid up equity shares by way of 

bonus shares, allotted any equity shares persuant to any contract without payment being received in cash, and brought back 

any equity shares . 

c) Rights of Shareholders 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 'UO per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled for 

one vote per share. 

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity sha res will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 

company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 

held by the shareholders . 

d) Shares held by Holding Company, 

As at 31st March, As at 31st 

Particulars 
2024 March, 2023 

% of Share % of Share 

Holding Holding 
LCC Projects Private Limited 51.00% 60.00% 

e) Shares with voting rights held by each share holder holding more than 5% Equity shares of the Company: 

Equity Shares Equity Shares 

Name of Shareholder 
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

No. of Shares 
% of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

held 

Hari lal Ja tiya 1,50,000 20.00% 2,000 20.00% 

LCC Projects Priva te Li mit ed 3,82,500 51.00% 6,000 60 .00% 

Mukes h Jat iya 1,50,000 20.00% 2,000 20.00% 

Jema l Ka na Rabari 67,500 9.00% 0.00% 

f) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at 31" March 2024 and 31" March 2023 is as follows : 

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year : 
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 

Name of Shareholder No . of Shares Holding(%) No. of Shares Holding(%) 

Harilal Jatiya 1,50,000 72.15% 2;000 0.96% 

LCC Projects Private Limited 3,82,500 183.98% 6,000 2.89% 

l\llukesh Jati ya 1,50,000 72. 15% 2,000 0. 96% 

Jemal Kana Rabari 67,500 32.47% - 0.00% 
Total 7,50,000 360.75% 10,000 4.81% 

% Change during 

the year 

74.00 

62. 75 

~ €JQ 
.A,_~ °?- ' ::..:...:_,1,,i, I 

~ ~ </! 
!::§"/ _210.75 c> 

0 
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~~ ~ :,p~D ACC'o-.:S 
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Note 14 : Other Equity 

Asat As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Retained earnings - Surplus of Profit and Loss 

Balance at the beginning of the year - -

Profit Transfer to Retained Earnings 43.43 -

Balance at the end of the year 43.43 -

Total 43.43 -

Note 15: Long Term Borrowings 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

a) Term Loans 

Secured term loan from Banks 194.55 71.74 

b) Loans from related parties 

Unsecured loan from directors 26.17 24.00 
Total 220.72 95.74 

Note 15.1 Refer Note 15.1 for details relating to the long term borrowings. 

Note 15.2 Refer Note 30 for Related Party Transactions and outstanding balances. 

Note 16 : Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) (Net) 

Asat Asat 
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Excess of depreciation and amortization on fixed assets under income tax law over 
6.10 -

depreciation and amortization provided in accounts 

Prepaid Expenses 2.31 -

Less: Deferred Tax Assets 

Provision for Expected Credit Loss 0.67 -
Total 7.74 -

Note 17: Short Term Borrowings 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

a) Current maturities of long term borrowings 
Secured term loan from Banks 77.90 27.62 

b) Loans repayable on demand from related parties 

Unsecured Loan from holding company 217.21 212 .68 

Total 295.11 240.30 

Note 17.2 Refer Note 30 for Re lated Party Transactions and outstanding ba lances. 



Note 18 : Trade Payables 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 7.97 -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and Small 

enterprises 
61.53 45.77 

Total 69.50 45.77 

Note 18.1 : Trade Payable are payable on account of goods purchased and services availed in the normal course of business. 

Note 18.2: Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 

2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information 

and records available with the Management, following is the amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (including interest 

on outstanding dues) which are outstanding as at balance sheet date. 

As at Asat 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Principal amount due to suppliers registered as micro and small enterprises under 

the MSMED Act,2006 and remaining unpaid as at year end 
7.97 -

Interest due thereon - -

Amount of interest paid by company in terms of section 16 of the MSMED, along 

with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 

during the accounting year. - -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but 

without adding the interest specified under the MSMED - -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting 

year I period. - -

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years. 
- -

Note 18.3 : Refer Note 18.3 for Ageing of Trade Payable. 

Note 18.4 : Refer Note 30 fo r Related Party Transactions and outstanding balances. 

Note 19 : Other Current Financial Liabilities 

As at Asat 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Rs . in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Employee related dues 79.40 0.25 

Interest accru ed but not du e 0.45 0.07 

Total 79.85 0.32 

Not e 19.1 : Refer Not e 30 for Rel at ed Party Transacti ons and outstanding balances . 
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Note 18.3 Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows: 

Outstanding for following periods from due 

Particulars 
date of payment 

Less than More than 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

1 year 3 years 

Outstanding dues of micro and small 
7.97 - - -

enterprises 
Outstanding dues other than micro and 

61.53 - - -
small enterprises 
Disputed dues - Outstanding dues of micro 

- - - -
and small enterprises 
Disputed dues - Outstanding dues other than - - - -
micro and small enterprises 
Total 69.50 - - -

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Total 

7.97 

61.53 

-

-
69.50 

*Micro and Small enterprises as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devlopment Act,2006. 

Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due 

Particulars 
date of payment 

Total 
Less than 

1-2 Years 2-3 years 
More than 

1 year 3 years 
Outstanding dues of micro and small 

- - - - -
enterprises 
Outstanding dues other than micro and 

45 .77 45.77 - - -
small enterprises 
Disputed dues - Outstanding dues of micro 

- - - - -
and small enterprises 
Disputed dues - Outstanding dues other than - - - - -
micro and small enterprises 

Total 45.77 - - - 45.77 
*Micro and Small enterprises as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devlopment Act,2006. 



Note 20 : Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory Dues Payable 
Advances from Customers 

Total 

Note 21 : Revenue From Operations 

Particulars 

Sale of Goods 

Total 

Class of Goods 

Kaolin Clay Curde {White Clay) 

Levigated China Clay 

Silica Sand 

Others Miscellaneous Items 

Total 

Note 22: Other Income 

Particulars 

(A) Income on Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost 

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit 

(B) Other Non-operating Income 

Interest Income on Income tax refund 

Total 

Note 23 : Cost of Materials Consumed 

Particulars 

Inventory at the beginning of the year 

Add: Purchases 

Less: Inventory at the end of t he yea r 

Total cost of raw materials consumed 

Note 23.1: Refer Note 30 for Related Party Transactions and outstand ing balances. 

Descript ion of Raw M aterials 

Kaolin Clay Curd e 
Total 

Asat 

31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

16.18 
8.23 

24.41 

For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

682.54 

682.54 

For the year ended on 

31st March 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

290.22 

343 .13 

49.04 

0.15 

682.54 

For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

0.01 

0.06 

0.07 

For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

29 .69 

0.91 

(36 .52) 

(5.92) 
{5.92) 

For the year ended 

on 31st M arch, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

0.91 
0.91 

As at 

31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

0.08 
-

0.08 

For the period 03-03-

2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

-

-

For the period 03-03-

2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

-
-
-

-

-

For the period 03-03-

2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

-

-
-

For the year ended 

on 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

-
29 .69 

(29.69) 
-
-

For the year ended 

on 31st M arch, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 



Note 24 : Purchase of Stock In trade 

For the year ended For the period 03-03-

Particulars on 31st March, 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Purchase of Goods 20.49 -

Total 20.49 -

For the year ended For the period 03-03-

Description of Purchases on 31st March, 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Levigated China Clay 0.39 -

Silica Sand 20.02 -

Others Miscellaneous Items 0.08 -

Total 20.49 -

Note 25 : Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars on 31st March, 2024 on 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

FINISHED GOODS 

Opening Finished Goods - -
Less: Closing Finished Goods (39.99) -

Total (39 .99) -



Note 26 : Employee Benefits Expenses 

For the year ended For the period 03-03-

Particulars on 31st March, 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Salaries, Bonus, Wages and Incentives 22 .90 -

Directors' Remuneration 90.00 -

Staff Welfare Expenses 3.11 -

Total 116.01 -
Note 26.1: Refer Note 30 for Related Party Transactions and outstanding balances. 

Note 27 : Finance Cost 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars on 31st March, 2024 on 31st March, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Interest on term loans 11.25 -

Interest on loans from related parties 29.68 -

Interest on Income Tax 0.57 -

Other Borrowing Costs 0.43 -

Total 41.93 -

Note 28 : Other Expenses 

For the year ended For the period 03-03-

Particulars on 31st March, 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 
A) Direct Expenses 
Mining Expenses 181.19 -

Reimburesement of Rent and Royalty 78.29 -
Machinery Hiring Charges 0.15 -
Power and Fuel 4.37 -

Sub Contract Work Expen ses 26.69 -

B) Administration Expenses 
Carriage inward 60.06 -

Communication Expenses 0.29 -
Computer & Software Expenses 0.43 -

Electricity Expense 19.96 -

Expected Credit Loss 2.65 -

I nsura nee Expenses 0.25 -

Lease Expenses 27.24 -

Legal & Professional Expense 0.62 -

Miscellaneous Expenses 2.63 -

Packing & Forwarding Expense 0.25 -

Payment to Auditors 0.50 -

Power and fuel 30.78 -

Rates & Ta xes 19.84 -
Repair & Maintenance Expense 1.85 -
Spares, Tools & Consumables 5.49 -

Stationery, Postage & Telephone Expense 1.03 -
Test ing Charges 0.46 -
Vehic le & Machinery Hiring Charges 1.51 -
Web Service Expense 1.11 -

Total 467.66 -
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Note 29 : Payments to the Auditors 

For Audit Fees 

Total 

Note 30 : Related Party Transactions 

Particulars 

Disclosures of related party relations: 

Particulars 

Holding Company 

Key Managerial Personnel 

Relatives of KMP 

Enterprises over which KMP and/o r Relatives of KMP are ab le to exercise 

significant Influence 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

a.so 0.30 
0.50 0.30 

As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

LCC Projects Pvt. Ltd . LCC Projects Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Arjanbhai Rabari Mr. Arjanbhai Rabari 

(Director) (Director) 

Mr. Lalajibhai Ahir Mr. Lalajibhai Ahir 

(Director) (Director) 

Mr. Jemal Rabari Mr. Jemal Rabari 

(Director) (Director) 

Mr. Harilal Jatiya Mr. Harilal Jatiya 

(Director) (Director) 

Mr. Mukeshbhai Jatia Mr. Mukeshbhai Jatia 

(Director) (Director) 

Bechara Suja Rabari Bechara Suja Rabari 

(Brother of Director) (Brother of Director) 

Deva Suja Rabari Deva Suja Rabari 

(Brother of Director) (Brother of Director) 

Sejuben Arjanbhai Rabari 
Sejuben Arjanbhai 

Rabari 
(Wife of Director) 

(Wife of Director) 

Hamir Suja Rabari Hamir Suja Rabari 

(Brother of Director) (Brother of Director) 

Geeta Lalji Ahir Geeta Lalji Ahir 

(Wife of Director) (Wife of Director) 

Laxmiben Ah ir Laxmiben Ahir 

(Moth er of Director) (Mother of Director) 

Magiben Jemalbhai Rabari 
Magiben Jemalbhai 

Rabari 
(Wife of Director) 

(Wife of Director) 

Kishan Jemal Rabari Kishan Jemal Rabari 

(Son of Director) (Son of Director) 

Deva Kana Rabari Deva Kana Rabari 

(Brother of Director) (Brother of Director) 

Sabhiben Haribhai Jatiya Sabhiben Haribhai Jatiya 

(Wife of Director) (Wife of Director) 

Kailash Haribhai Jatiya Kai l ash Haribhai Jatiya 

(Son of Director) (Son of Director) 

Khaa Organic Pvt. Ltd . Khaa Organic Pvt. Ltd . 

Dom's Delicious Pvt. Ltd . Dom's Delicious Pvt . Ltd . 

Dom Reality Pvt. Ltd. Dom Reali ty Pvt. Ltd. 

LCC Foundation LCC Foundation 

Gramang Hydel Projects Gramang Hydel Projects 

LLP LLP 

Laxmi Stone Laxmi Stone 

Shree Arjanbhai Shree Arjanbhai 

Chothabhai Ah ir Memorial Chothabhai Ahir 

Trust Memorial Trust 

Sh ri Han Knshna 
Shri Han Krishna 

Minechem LLP (w .e.f 28 
Mmechem LLP 

03-23 ) 



Related Party Transactions : Holding Company 

For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

LCC Projects Pvt. Ltd . 

Contribution to Equity Share Capital during the year 37.65 0.60 

Loans taken from holding company: 

Balance at beginning of the year 212.68 

Loan s taken during the year 88.66 212.68 

Interest expense payable during the year 27.27 

Loans repaid during the year (111.40) 

Loans payable at the end of the year 217.21 212.68 

Related Party Transactions : Key Management Personnel 
For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Purchase of Land: 

Harilal Jatiya 60.00 

Contribution to Equity Share Capital during the year: 

Harilal Jatiya 14.80 0.20 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 14.80 0.20 

Jemalbhai Rabari 6. 75 

Loans taken from Key Managerial Personnel : 

Balance at beginning of the year 

Harilal Jatiya 12.00 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 12.00 

Loans taken during the year 

Harilal Jatiya 12.00 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 12.00 

Interest expense payable during the year 

Harilal Jatiya 1.20 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 1.20 

Loans repaid during the year 

Harilal Jatiya (0.12) 

Mukeshbhai Jatia (0.12) 

Loans payable at the end of the year 

Harilal Jatiya 13.08 12.00 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 13.08 12.00 

Remuneration : 

Arjanbhai Rabari 22.95 

· Lalajibhai Ahir 22.95 

Jemal Rabari 8.10 

Harilal Jatiya 18.00 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 18.00 -

Mining Contract Work Expense: 

Harilal Jatiya 35.02 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 25.18 

Reimburesement of Rent and Royalty : 

Jemal Kana Rabari 98.85 -



Amount payable : Key Management Personnel 

For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Salary payable: 

Arjanbhai Rabari 19.07 

Lalajibhai Ahir 19.07 

Jemal Rabari 7.78 

Harilal Jatiya 15.66 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 15.66 

Sundry Creditors: 

Harilal Jatiya 6.19 

Mukeshbhai Jatia 5.73 

Jemal Kana Rabari 5.65 

Related Party Transactions : Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Mining Contract Work Expense: 

Kailash Harilal Jatiya 36. 14 

Amount payable : Relatives of Key Management Personnel 
For the year ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sundry Creditors: 

Kailash Harilal Jatiya 5.15 

Note 31 : Earning Per Share 

Earning per share is calculated on the basis of Indian Accountin g Standard (Ind AS)-33 " Earnings Per Share" issued by The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

Number of shares used as denominator for calculating basic EPS as on balance sheet date. Th e amount used as numerator for 

calcu lating Basic EPS is profi t after taxation. Earning per Share for the Year is as under:-

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Profit attributable to Equity Share Holders (Rs. in lakhs) 43.43 

Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary equity holders (Rs. in Lakh s) 43.43 

Weight ed average number of equity shares outstanding during the year* 1,73,770 10,000 

Number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share 1,73,770 10,000 

Face Value of Equity Shares 10 10 
Basic Earnings per share (Amount in Rs) 25.00 

Diluted Earnings per share (Amount in Rs) 25.00 

• Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the 

number of equity shares issued during the year multiplied by the time weight ing factor. The time weighting factor is the number of 

days for which the specific shares are outstand ing as a proportion of total number of days during the year. 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 32 : Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement 

A Categories of Financial Instruments 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other Current Financial Assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

(iii) Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Total 

Particulars 

Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other Current Financial Assets 

Total 

Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

(iii) Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Total 

Fair Value through 

Profit & Loss 

-
-
-
-

-
-

-

Fair Value through 

Profit & Loss 

-
-
-
-

-
-

-

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Amount as at 31st March 2024 

Fair Value through Amortised Cost Total 

Other Comprehensive 

- 116.59 116.59 

- 23.41 23.41 

0.01 0.01 

- 140.01 140.01 

- 515 .83 515 .83 
69.50 69.50 

79.85 79.85 

- 665.17 665.17 

Amount as at 31st March 2023 

Fair Value through Amortised Cost Total 

Other Comprehensive 

- -
18.53 18.53 

- -
- 18.53 18.53 

- 336.04 336.04 

- 45.77 45.77 

0.32 0.32 

- 382.12 382.12 



B Fair Value Hierarchy 

Th e fair value measurement of the Companay's financial and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far as 

possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the 

valuation technique utilised are (the 'fair value hierarchy'): 

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments that are measured by reference to quoted prices 

(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities . This category consists of quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debt instruments 

and mutual fund investments. 

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2) : Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i .e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) . 

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market 

data (unobservable inputs) . 

Methods and assumptions 

(a) The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, Loans, trade receivables, trade payables, 

borrowings, lease liabilities and other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short­

term maturities of these financial instruments. 

(b) Borrowings include Indian currency long-term loans wherein interest rates are linked to benchmark rates (Marginal Cost of Lending 

Rates/Prime Lending Rates) of respective lenders. These benchmark rates are determined based on cost of funds of the lenders, as well as, market 

rates. The benchmark rates are periodically revised by the lenders to reflect prevalent market conditions . Accordingly, effective cost of debt for 

borrowings at any point of time is in line with the prevalent market rates. Due to these reasons, management is of the opinion that they can 

achieve refinancing, if required, at similar cost of debt, as current effective interest rates. Hence, the discounting rate for calculating the fair value 

of borrowings has been taken in line with the current cost of debt. 

C Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the 

equity holders of the Company. The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and 

i) to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of 

key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to ri sk and manage the capital 

structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. 

ii) 
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors its capital using Gearing Ratio, Net Debt (Short Term and Long Term Borrowings 

including Current maturities) divided by Total Equity (Capital plus Net Debt). 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note 15) 220.72 95 .74 

Short Term Borrowings (Refer Note 17) 295 .11 240.30 

Less: Cas h & Cash Equiva lents (Refer Note 9) 23.41 18. 53 

Net Debt 492 .42 317.52 

Total equi ty 118.43 1.00 

Total Capital 118.43 1.00 

Gearing Ra t io (in t im es) 4.16 317 .52 

In order to achieve this overal l objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial 

covenants attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 



D Financial risk management : 

General objectives, policies and processes 

The company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans, borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial 

liabilities is to finance the company's operations. The company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash 

equivalents and other financial assets that are out of regular business operations. 

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk . The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. 

The Company's senior management is supported by a Current Corporate Affairs Committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate 

financial risk governance framework for the Company. This committee provid es assurance to the Company's senior management that the 

Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and 

managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, 
which are summarised as below: 

1 Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices . Market 

risk comprises of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity risk . 

1.1 Interest Rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates . The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's working capital obligations with 

floating interest rates . The Company is carrying its working capital borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to 

decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates. 

The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates for loans carried at variable rate. 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Financial Liabilities: 

a) Variable Rate Borrowings ( Rs.in Lakhs) 243.38 236.68 

% change in interest rates 0.50% 0.50% 

Impact on Profit for the year ( Rs. in Lakhs) 1.22 1.18 

b) Fixed Rate Borrowings ( Rs.in Lakhs) 272.45 99.36 

Financial Assets: 

a) Fixed Rate deposits with bank ( Rs.in Lakhs) 5.00 -

1.2 Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that th e fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Company does not have significant exposure in foreign currency. 

2 Credit risk 

a) Credit risk management 

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company's 

exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade and other receivables. 

(b) Trade and other receivables 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, 

including the default risk of the industry and country in which th e customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is 

managed through credit approvals, establi shing cred it limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of cu stomers to wh ich the 

Company grants credit term s in the norma l co urse of bu sin ess . 

(c) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 

None of th e Co mpany's cas h equiva lents, including short term deposi ts w ith banks, are past due or impaired. Rega rding trade rece ivables an d 

oth er receivables, and oth er loans or receiva bles that are nei th er impai red nor past due, th ere were no indica t ion s as at March 31, 2024 and 

March 31, 2023 that defau lts in pa yment obligati ons wi ll occur. 

3 liquidi ty risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty to meet its financial obligations . The Company monitor its risk of a 

sh ortage of fund s by estimating the future cas h flows . The Company's objec t ive is to maintain a balance between contin uity of funding and 

flexib ility through the use of bank overd rafts. cas h cred it fac il it ies and bank loans. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sou rces of 

funding. 



The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

( Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Within 1 Year 2 to 5 Year More than 5 Year Carrying Amount 

As at March 31, 2024 

Borrowings 295 .11 182.58 38.14 515.83 
Trade Payables 69.50 - - 69.50 

Total 364.61 182.58 38.14 585.32 

As at March 31, 2023 

Borrowings 240.30 95 .74 - 336.04 

Trade Payables 45 .77 - - 45.77 

Total 286.07 95.74 - 381.81 



LCC Minechem Private Limited 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 
All Amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

Note 15.1 : Long Term Borrowings 

Sr. No. Lender 
Secured I 

Nature of Facility 
Unsecured 

1 HDFC Bank limited Secured 
Commercial 

Equipment Loan 

2 Central Bank of India Secured Term Loan 

.. 
Securities Offered : 

Against Equipment Loan: 

Amount Balance no. of 

Amount Outstanding Rate of Interest Installments as 
Sanctioned as on 31st (p.a) at 31st March, 

March, 2024 2024 

99.95 71.74 
Ranging from Ranging from 24 

8.86% to 8.88% to 26 

199.00 200.71 10.10% 70 

298.95 272.45 

The above equipment loans are secured by exclusive charge on respective Commercial Equipments for which the loan is taken. 

Further, the said loans are secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the following director : 
1) Mr. Laljibhai Ahir 

Against Term Loan: 

Frequency of Installment 
Installments Amount 

Monthly 0.78 

Monthly 3.81 

The above term loan is secured by Industria l N.A. land at RS no. 387/Pl/2 & 387/P2/4 Village ·Mamuara, Tai. Bhuj ·Kutch, Total Land Area 35,815 sq .mtr, proposed 

construction of china clay plant bui lding thereon and plant & machinery of such proposed plant. 

Further, the said loans are secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the following directors: 

1) Mr. Arjanbhai Rabari 

2) M r. La lajibhai Ahi r 

3) Mr. Jemal Rabari 

4) M r. Harilal Ja t iya 

5) Mr. Mukeshbhai Jatia 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 33 : First-time adoption of Ind AS 

Notes 

1 Adjustments of the Previous Period 

Adjustment to the previous period represent cumulative change in retained earnings upto beginning of the respective 

reporting period. 

2 Deferred Tax(Net) 

The Company on restatement has reassessed deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability taking into consideration the 

income tax rates prevailing in the respective years for timing difference or temporary differences as applicable and 

corresponding charge I credit has been made in the Profit and Loss Statement for the year to which it pertains. 

3 Current tax assets 

Interest on Income Tax Refund has been recorded in the year of receipt. Also considered the tax impact of income tax 

return I assessment I orders of earlier years in the year of crystallisation of demand I refund . On restatement, such 

amounts have been recorded in respective year to which the income tax assessment relates. 

4 Trade Receivable 

As per Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model on Receivables and the same is provided in 

restated financials to the receivable pertains to respective years. 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 33 : First-time adoption of Ind AS 

These are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. 

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 

2024, the comparative information presented in these financial statements as well as opening IND AS balance sheet for the year 

ended March 31, 2023 (the Company's date of transition) . In preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the company has adjusted 

the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under 

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act ("previous GAAP") . The 

company has also regrouped and reclassified figures of previous reporting period as per the requirements of IND AS. An 

explanation of how the tra nsition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial 

performance is set out in the following tables and notes: 

Reconciliation of equity as on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023: 

( Rs. in Lakhs} 

Particulars 
Note 

As at 31st March, 2023 

No. Previous IGAAP Adjustments lnd~S 

I. ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment ' 169.31 - 169.31 
(b) Capital Work in progress 29.74 - 29.74 
(c) Other Non-Current Assets 5.05 - 5.05 
Total Non - Current Assets 204.09 204.09 

2 Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 29.69 - 29.69 
(b) Financial Assets -

(i) Trade Receivables 4 - - -

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 18.53 - 18.53 
(iii) Other Current Financial Assets - - -

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 3 1.29 1.29 
(c) Other Current Assets 129.61 - 129.61 
Total Current Assets 179.12 - 179.12 

TOTAL 383.21 - 383.21 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1~ 
(a) Equity Share Capital 1.00 - 1.00 
(b) Other Equity 1 - - -

Total Equity 1.00 - 1.00 

2 Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financia I Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 95.74 - 95.74 
(b) Deferred tax liabi lities (Net) 2 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 95.74 95.74 

3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liab ilities 

(i) Borrowings 240.30 240.30 
(i i) Trade Payables 

(A) 
Tota l outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and 

Small enterprises 

(B) 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other th an Micro 

enterprises and Small enterpr ises 45 .77 45 .77 
(iii ) Oth er current financial li ab ilit ies 0.32 0.32 

(b) Other Current Liabilit ies 0.08 0.08 
(c) Current Tax Liabilt ies (Net) 6 

Total Current Liabiliti es 286.47 286. 47 

TOTAL 383.21 383.21 

-
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LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN : U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 33 : First time adoption of Ind AS 

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS: Ind AS 101 requires an entity to 

. reconcile equity for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from 

Statement of Reconciliation of Equity Under IND AS and Equity Reported under IGAAP as at 31st March 

2023: 

( Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March 2023 

Closing Balance of Other Equity as per IGAAP 
Adjustments : 

Provision for Expected Credit Loss -
Deferred Tax -

Closing Balance of Other Equity as per IND AS 

Effect of Ind AS Adoption on Profit and Loss Account For the period 03-03-2022 to 31st 

March 2023: 

-

-
-

For the period 03-03-2022 to 31st March 

Particulars 
Note 2023 
No. Previous 

Adjustments Ind AS 
IGAAP 

I Revenue From Operations - - -
II Other Income - - -

Ill Total Income (1+11) - - -

IV Expenses: 
Cost of Material Consumed - - -
Purchase of Stock in Trade - - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-

in-progress and Stock-in-Trade - - -
Employee Benefits Expenses - - -
Fina nee costs - - -

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses - - -

Other Expen ses 4 - - -

Total Expenses (IV) - - -

V Profit Before Tax (Ill-IV) - - -

VI Tax expense: 
(1) Current t ax 3 - - -

(2) Deferred t ax 2 - - -

v Profit After Tax For The Year - - -
- -~~ IJ.J O 
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LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 34 : Movement in Tax amd Deferred tax Assets/ Liabilities 

A. Amount Recognised in Profit and Loss 

" 
_, 

" r Particulars 

- -
Current income tax: 

Current income tax charge 

Deferred tax : 

Re lat ing to ori gi nation and reversal of temporary differences 

Total 

8. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 

Accounting profit before tax 

Applicable Income tax rate 

Computed expected tax expense 

De ferred Tax expenses accounted in books 

Effec t of expense not allowed for tax purpose 

Effect of expense allowed fo r tax purpose 

Income tax expense 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

C. Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities 

Particulars 

I 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 

Difference in Book Net Va lue and Tax Net Value of Property, Plant and 

Eq uipment 

Prepaid Expenses 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Prov ision fo r Expected Cred it Loss 

Total 

Balance as at 

April 1, 2022 

-

-

-

-

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Forthe Yearended 
For the period 03-

March 31, 2024 
03-2022 to 31st 

March 2023 

9.70 -

7.74 -

17.44 -

(Rs. in Lakhsl 

Forthe Yearended 
For the period 03-

March 31, 2024 
03-2022 to 31st 

March 2023 

60.88 -
25.17% 25.17% 

15.32 -
7.74 -

30.49 

(54.96) -
17.44 -
17.44 -

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Recognized in profit Balance as at Balance as at Recognized in profit Balance as at 

or loss during 2022- March 31, 2023 April 1, 2023 or loss during 2023- March 31, 2024 

23 24 

- - 6.10 6.10 

- - 2.31 2.31 

- 0.67 0.67 

- - - 7.74 7.74 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Notes to Financi.11 Statements 

Note 3S: Additional Regulatory Disclosures As Per Schedule 111 Of Companies Act, 2013. 
The following additional disclosures are made pursuant to notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 24th March, 2021. 

{i) Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in the name of Company 
The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the 

company itself. 

(ii) Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment 

The company has not carried out revaluation of items of Property, Plant & Equipment during the year and accordingly the disclosure as to whether the revaluat ion is based on the valuation by a 

registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Com panies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable. 

(iii) Loans/ Advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMP's and Related Parties 

The Co mpany has not made any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters, Directors, KMP's and the related parties which are outstanding as at the end of the current year and previous 

years. 

(iv) Details of Benami Property held 

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

M Wilful Defaulter 
Non e of the banks, financial institutions or other lenders from whom the company ha s borrowed funds has declared the company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the cu rrent year or in 

previous year. 

(vi) Relationship with Struck off Companies 

The company has not undertaken any transact ions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the current year or in 

previous year. 

(vii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Com panies (ROC) 
All th e charges or satisfaction of which is required to be registered with Registra r of Companies(ROC) have been duly registered within the statutory time limit provided under the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

(viii) Compliance with number of layers of companies 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

(ix) Compliance with Approved Scheme of Arrangements 

No scheme of compromise or arrangement has been proposed between the company & its members or the company & its creditors under sec tion 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act") and 

accordingly the disclosure as to wheth er the scheme of compromise or a rrangement has been approved or not by the competent authority in terms of provisions of sections 230 to 237 of the act is 

not app licable. 

(x) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and Share Prem ium 

a) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (In termediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en tities identified in any mann er whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries} or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries . 

(xi) There were no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of account, have been surrende red or disclosed as Income In the tax assessments under the Incom e Tax Act, 1961 (43 
of 1961) during the year. 

(xii) The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Vlrtual Currency during the financial year. 



LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC129808 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 36: Ratios for the years ended 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 are as follows: 

Sr No. Name of the Ratio Numerator Denominator 

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 

2 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt #1 Equity 

3 
Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio 

Earning avai lable for 
Total debt service #3 

debt services #2 

4 Return on Equity Net profits after taxes 
Average shareholder 

equity 

5 
Revenue from 

Inventory Turnover Ratio Average Inventory 
Operations #5 

6 
Trade receivables Revenue from Average Trade 

turnover ratio Operations #5 Receivables 

7 
Trade payable turnover 

Net Purchases #6 Average Trade Payables 
ratio 

8 Net capital turnover ratio 
Revenue from Average Working 

Operations #5 Capital 

9 Net profit ratio Net profits Net sa les 

10 
Return on capital Earning before interest 

Capital employed #4 
employed and taxes 

11 Return on investment 
Income generated from 

Average invested fund s 
invested funds 

#1 Debt represents all liabilities including lease liabilities 

for the year For the year 

ended ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

0.65 0.63 

5.92 382.21 

1.04 

0.73 

12.85 

11.71 NA 

4.95 1.30 

(5.03) 

0.06 NA 

60.94 

NA NA 

#2 Earnings avai lable for Debt service represents Profit Before Tax+ Finance Cost+ Depreciation + Lo_ss on Sale of Assets 

#3 Debt Service represents Interest+ Principal Repayment 

#4 Capital Employ,ed represents Equity, External borrowings and Deferred tax liabilities 

#5 Revenue from Operations represents sale of services and other material sales. 

#6 Net Purchases includes purchase of material as well as direct expenses linked to mining 

Note 37 : Significant Event Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date 

% Variance Reason for Variance (if variance is more 

March 31, 2024 than 25%) 

4.51% NA 

Due to addition in sha re capital and retained 

-98.45% earnings in current year as compared to 

previous year. 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

281.70% 
Due to substantial increase in the value of 

net purchases in current year. 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

NA NA 

There is no significant subsequent event that would require adjustments or disclosure in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date. 

Note 38: Previous year's figures have been re-arranged and re-grouped, wherever necessary to make them compa rable with those of current year. 

Note 39: 

The company has opted for new tax regime Pursuant to Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 ("Ordinance") issued by Ministry of Law and Justice (Legislation Department) 

on September 20, 2019 and which is effective from April 1, 2019, domestic companies have an option to pay corporate Income 

Tax@ 22% + Surcharge and Cess ("New Tax Rate") subject to certain conditions as per section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since, the company has opted for new tax 

regime no Minimum Alternate Tax would be applicable now onwards. 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

LCC MINECHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 

CIN: U14290GJ2022PTC 9808 

Director 

DIN : 7794582 

$ 
Laljibhai A. Ahir 

Director 

DIN: 7794599 

Date: 7th September, 2024 

Place: Ahmedabad 

As per our report of even date, 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. - 112171W 

.m~:, .... , 
Partner 

Membership No : 037671 

Date: 7th September, 2024 

Place : Ahmedabad 


